
 

 

 
                                                                                                  
 

 

 

 

 

THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION 

(PZHAC) WILL HOLD A REGULAR MEETING AT THE MESILLA TOWN HALL, 2231 

AVENIDA DE MESILLA. 

TUESDAY JANUARY 3, 2023, AT 2:30 P.M. 

AGENDA 

 

 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 

3.   CHANGES / APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4.   PUBLIC INPUT 

The public is invited to address the commission regarding items listed on the agenda as allowed by 

the chair.  You can also email your comments to clerktreasurer@mesillanm.gov at least twenty-four 

(24) hours prior to the meeting.   

5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the Consent Agenda, indicated by an asterisk (*), will be voted on with one motion 

unless a commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 

a. *PZHAC MINUTES: December 19, 2022, Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

6. INFORMATION FOR ADMINISTRATIVE APPOVALS 

a. PZHAC Case #061498 – 2820 Boldt Street, submitted by Robert Church to repair canales and 

leaks and to re-roof with new material. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

a. PZHAC Case #061502 – 2116 & 2118 Calle De San Albino, submitted by Jade Bossert Trustee, 

to install a 6’ tall dog ear cedar fence and two 4’ wide dog ear cedar gates. Zoned: Historical 

Residential (HR) 

b. PZHAC Case #061503  -- 2525 Calle de Parian A, submitted by Renee Beltran, to install a 

residential PV Solar System (8 Panels, 4 Inverters, 2.96 Kw. Main panel Upgrade: 200A 

Bus/200A Main). Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 

c. PZHAC Case #061504 – 1583 Paisano Rd, submitted by Gabriel Garcia, to install 20 roof-

mounted solar panels and 2 energy storage systems (batteries). Zoned: Rural Farm 

d. PZHAC Case #061505 – 2840 Teresita, submitted by Jacquie Porter, to repair stucco, add color 

coat, trim paint, replace windows on back porch, and rain gutters under canals. Zoned: Historical 

Residential (HR) 

e. PZHAC Case #061506 – 2001 Avenida De Mesilla, submitted by Jimmy Nevarez for a sign 

permit. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 

 

mailto:clerktreasurer@mesillanm.gov


 

 

8. COMMISSIONERS / STAFF COMMENTS 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact us at 

524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

Posted on 12/29/2022 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de Mesilla; Public Safety Building - 2670 Calle de 

Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle de Santiago; Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Ristramnn - 2531 

Avenida de Mesilla, and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 



 

PZHAC Regular Minutes December 19, 2022 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

THE PLANNING, ZONING AND  

HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC)  

MONDAY DECEMBER 19, 2022, 2:30 PM 

 

MINUTES 

 
1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Chairperson Yolanda Lucero led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

 

Mayor Nora L. Barraza took roll call. 
 
Commissioner Danny Jones – Present    
Commissioner Eric Walkinshaw - Present      
Chairperson Yolanda Lucero - Present 
Commissioner Davie Salas- Present 
Commissioner Gerard Nevarez – Present 
 
Mayor Barraza declared a quorum. 
 

3. CHANGES / APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Motion to approve the agenda was made by Commissioner Nevarez and seconded by 

Commissioner Walkinshaw.   

 
Roll Call Vote: 

Commissioner Jones - Yes 
Commissioner Walkinshaw – Yes 
Chairperson Lucero - Yes 
Commissioner Salas- Yes 
Commissioner Nevarez – Yes 
 
Motion passes. 

 

4. PUBLIC INPUT 

 

Susan Krueger commented on the Night Sky Ordinance. She reminded the Commissioners to 
review the lighting attached to any new houses to make sure it meets the ordinance.  She also 
commented on demolition by neglect that she felt was going on in the Town such as the Butler 
house. Houses such as this which are not kept up with deteriorate over time. 
 
Chairperson Lucero asked Mrs. Krueger to also share these comments to the Board of Trustees. 



 

PZHAC Regular Minutes December 19, 2022 

Page 2 of 6 

 

Marcia Toomey, President of the Mesilla Farms Home Owners Association (HOA) commented 
that the last case under New Items is located in Mesilla Farms and the HOA board is not in favor 
of short-term rentals of any kind and it violated their covenants and restrictions. She asked that 
the Town of Mesilla continues to be supportive of their opinion on this matter. She gave Clerk-
Treasurer Rani Bush a copy of their covenant and her letter. 
 
Cesareo Contreras, 2832 Erminda owner and applicant of the short-term rental in question, 
commented that he read through the convenient and found no restrictions to any type of rentals. 
He also provided a letter to Clerk-Treasurer Bush that he also sent to the Mayor and president of 
the HOA. 

 
 

5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

1. *PZHAC MINUTES: December 5, 2022, Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

Motion to approve the consent agenda and Cases #061495 & 061496 (which were 

administratively approved) was made by Commissioner Jones and seconded by 

Commissioner Nevarez.   

 
Roll Call Vote: 

Commissioner Nevarez – Yes 
Commissioner Salas - Abstained 
Chairperson Lucero - Yes  
Commissioner Walkinshaw - Yes 
Commissioner Jones - Yes 
 
Motion passes. 

 

6. INFORMATION FOR ADMINISTRATIVE APPOVALS 

 
a. PZHAC Case #061495 – 1595 Paisano Rd, submitted by Frank and Chang Proctor to build a 

shed on the westside of property, not on a concrete pad. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 

b. PZHAC Case #061496 – 2600 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Gilbert Chavez for 
emergency repair of structural damage due to a car accident including framing, stucco, and 
plumbing work to restore as existing. Zoned Historical Commercial (HC) 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS 

a. PZHAC Case #061493 – 2500 Calle de Colon, submitted by Maria Avalos, on SE side of 
property to remove dead tree, remove chain link fence, place culvert in ditch, and lay 4” base 
course on existing material (24’ wide x 50’ length on). Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 

 

Staff presented facts of the case.   
 

Motion to approve was presented by Commissioner Nevarez and seconded by 

Commissioner Jones.  

 

Discussion followed.    
 

Roll Call Vote: 

Commissioner Walkinshaw – Yes  
Chairperson Lucero – Yes  



 

PZHAC Regular Minutes December 19, 2022 

Page 3 of 6 

 

Commissioner Salas- Yes 
Commissioner Nevarez - Yes 
Commissioner Jones – Yes 
 
Motion passed.  

 

b. PZHAC Case #061497 – 2214 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Pat & Wendy Taylor for a 
360 square foot addition of a kitchen and bath where there is an existing storage shed. Zoned: 

Historical Commercial (HC) 

 

Staff presented facts of the case.   
 

Motion to approve was presented by Commissioner Salas and seconded by 

Commissioner Nevarez.  

 

Discussion followed. Commissioner Jones questioned the parking situation since it will 
become two residences. 
 
Motion to amend the motion by adding the condition of a parking fee of $150 per unit 

was made by Commissioner Nevarez and seconded by Commissioner Salas. 

 
Roll Call Vote on the amendment: 

Commissioner Salas- Yes 
Chairperson Lucero – Yes  
Commissioner Walkinshaw – Yes  
Commissioner Jones – Yes 
Commissioner Nevarez - Yes 
 
Motion passed.  

 

Roll Call Vote on the amended motion: 

Commissioner Nevarez – Yes with the condition 
Commissioner Salas- Yes with the condition 
Chairperson Lucero – Yes with the condition 
Commissioner Walkinshaw – Yes with the condition 
Commissioner Jones – Yes with the condition 
 
Motion passed.  

 

c. PZHAC Case #061498 - 2571 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Jeff McBride & Jane Mercer 
to replace evaporative cooler and gas furnace with ducted mini split HVAC unit. Zoned: 

Historical Residential (HR) 

 

Staff presented facts of the case.   
 

Motion to approve was presented by Commissioner Walkinshaw and seconded by 

Commissioner Jones.  

 

Discussion followed.    
 
 
 



 

PZHAC Regular Minutes December 19, 2022 

Page 4 of 6 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Commissioner Walkinshaw – Yes  
Chairperson Lucero – Yes  
Commissioner Salas- Yes 
Commissioner Nevarez - Yes 
Commissioner Jones – Yes 
 

Motion passed.  

 

d. PZHAC Case #061499 - 2571 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Jeff McBride & Jane Mercer 
to raise the height of courtyard wall to 10 feet to match height of connected house. Zoned: 

Historical Residential (HR) 

 

Staff presented facts of the case.   
 

Motion to approve was presented by Commissioner Nevarez and seconded by 

Commissioner Walkinshaw.  

 

Discussion followed. Commissioner Nevarez asked about the shed and a need for a right-of-
entry letter.  Mayor Barraza explained that the Marshall’s department is following up about 
the shed and other issues with the adjoining property.  
 
Motion to amend the motion by adding the condition of obtaining a right-of-entry letter 

before issuing the permit was made by Commissioner Nevarez. 

 
Roll Call Vote on the amendment: 

Commissioner Jones – Yes 
Commissioner Walkinshaw – Yes  
Chairperson Lucero – Yes  
Commissioner Salas- Yes 
Commissioner Nevarez - Yes 
 
Motion passed.  

 

Roll Call Vote on the amended motion: 

Commissioner Nevarez - Yes with the condition 
Commissioner Salas- Yes with the condition 
Chairperson Lucero – Yes with the condition  
Commissioner Walkinshaw – Yes with the condition  
Commissioner Jones – Yes with the condition 
 

Motion passed.  

 

e. STR #1036 - 2832 Erminda, submitted by Cesareo Contreras for a short-term rental, Zoned: 

Historical Residential (HR) 

 

Staff presented facts of the case.  
 

Motion to approve was presented by Commissioner Salas and seconded by 

Commissioner Walkinshaw.  

 



 

PZHAC Regular Minutes December 19, 2022 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Discussion followed. Mayor Barraza and Clerk-Treasurer Bush met with the town attorney 
regarding this issue. He explained to them that if short-term rentals are allowed in Mesilla 
Town Code, then the application should be approved.  The Town should not get involved with 
covenants between HOA’s and homeowners. Further disagreement between the two would 
have to be brought to civil court. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 

Commissioner Jones – No because it sets a precedent of going against an HOA covenant 
which he doesn’t agree with. 
Commissioner Walkinshaw – No because he is upset because they started renting without a 
permit.   
Chairperson Lucero – Yes because of the Town’s ordinances. She doesn’t like going against 
the HOA, but it is her job to go by the Town’s ordinances. 
Commissioner Salas – Yes because it meets the Town’s ordinances. The HOA regulations 
have nothing to do with this Board or the Town. 
Commissioner Nevarez – No because he still sees some uncertainties and wants to make sure 
the Commission is not setting precedent. 
 

Motion failed.  

 

Mayor Barraza explained that the applicant has a right to appeal to the Board of Trustees. 
 

8. COMMISSIONERS / STAFF COMMENTS 

 

Commissioner Nevarez wished his fellow commissioners, the mayor, and staff a very happy 
holiday. Chairperson Lucero welcomed by Commissioner Salas back and wished all a merry 
Christmas. 
 
Mayor Barraza explained that there are two applicants for the community development 
coordinator positions currently and interviews will be conducted soon. 
 
Chairperson Lucero and Commissioner Nevarez asked about the number of short-term rentals 
allowed in Mesilla.  Mayor Barraza noted that the Commission can review and recommend 
changes to the ordinances regarding short-term rentals to the Board of Trustees. 
 
Chairperson Lucero is also concerned about the condition of the Butler house and the blacksmith 
shop.  The Mayor is following up and will get the new Codes Enforcement officer involved as 
well. 
 
Mayor Barraza mentioned that letters of interest for new commissioners have been extended until 
the end of this week. She is looking to extend term of the commissioners who service ends on 
December 31 until after the holidays so that she will have time to interview new commissioners 
in January. She thanked each commissioner for their commitment and dedication to the 
Commission.  Chairperson Lucero thanked everyone for giving her the privilege to be on the 
Commission. 

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Roll Call Vote: 

Commissioner Jones - Yes 
Commissioner Walkinshaw - Yes 
Chairperson Lucero - Yes 
Commissioner Salas- Yes 



 

PZHAC Regular Minutes December 19, 2022 

Page 6 of 6 

 

Commissioner Nevarez - Yes 
 
Motion passed. 

 

Meeting was adjourned at 3:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
APPROVED THIS 3rd  DAY OF JANUARY 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

                  ______________________________________________ 

     Yolanda Lucero 

     Chairperson 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Rani Bush 

Town Clerk-Treasurer 










































































































































































